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NOTE: The matter is called to be
heard at 1:00 o'clock p.m., July 31, 1984,
having been continued from July 30, 1984,

and continues as follows, viz:

THE BAILIFF: The Commission resumes
its session.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right,
I believe you were in the midst of your
direct examination of Dr. Cornell.

MR. MARMON: Yes, Your Honor.

-Mr; Morrissey has requested that Mr. Wilcox .
go first because of a transportaﬁion problen,
and that is all right with us.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right.

Come around, Mr. Wilcox.

DOUGLAS S. WILCOX, recalled as a witness

by and on behalf of the Petitioner, having been previously
duly sworn, testifies further as follows, viz:
REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MORRISSEY:

Q - Mr. Wilcox, during your cross-

1266
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examination yesterday by Mr. Marmon, there was discussion
of your Exhibit DSW-2.

A - Yes.

Q Judge Shannon requested, in light of
some of the new information and errors that were indicated
on the exhibit,thaf you redo the exhibit last night,
with the latest available information to you; have you
done so?

A Yes,.we have. And I have distributed
what is now entitled DSW-2A.

MR. MORRISSEY: Judge Shannon, -

DSW-2A has been distributed to‘the court

reporter and to counsel of record just

prior to the start of the hearing today.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right,
we will receive that as indicated, Exhibit

DSW=2A.

BY MR. MORRISSEY: (Continuing)

Q Mr. Wilcox, would you please describe
A
DSW-2A.
A Yes, the first pagée of the three

is a summary page which shows the number of access lines
in the exchanges of C&P Company and non-C&P local

exchange companies. It also shows those access lines

1267
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with toll-free availability to OCCs, those access lines
with toll-free availability to resellers only, the total
of those two, and what percent that is of the total
access lines served by C&P and the non-C&P companies,
and the total in the State, and those percentages are

as shown on the summary page: 90 percent of the access
lines served by C&P have access to an AT&T competitor;
32 percent of the non-C&P lines have toll-free access

to a competitor of AT&T Communications; and then total
76 percent of the access lines in Virginia have access
to a competitor of AT&T Communications on a toll-free
basis.

Q ‘ And what was the source for the
informatioh which appears on your three pages of
exhibits?

A There are a number of sources. We
used data that we received from C&P as to their access
lines and to the OCC-served locations and reseller-
served locations in C&P territory. I also used information
frém Mr. Staley of the Independent Telephone Association,
as to the location of resellers and independent company
territory, or Cs&P Company territory, and we used the
data and the independent company publication which shows

the number of access lines as of 1/1/84 in the independent
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company territories. We also used the tariffs of the
independent companies and the C&P Company to show where
the EAS points were, so that we could generate the list
of cities =-- or. exchanges -- excuse me =-- with toll-free
access.

Q Does the information contained on
DSW-2A cause any changes in your direct testimony,
which has been identified as DSW-4?

A Yes, it does. Those changes would
appear on Page 9.

Q Could you read those changes into the
record.

A Yes. That paragraph -- the first
paragraph on that page should now read, "MCI, GTE-Sprint,
Western Union, United States Transmission Systems (USTS),
and resellers are currently active in the Commonwealth
with toll-free access‘to 96 exchanges serving 76 percent
of Virginia customer lines. See Attachment DSW-2A."

Q And do you adopt that change, as well
as DSW-2A, as part of your testimony in this proceeding?

A Yes, I do.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Give me those
figurés that you said, the resellers are

currently active in the Commonwealth serving,
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what was that?

THE WITNESS: Serving 76 percent
of Virginia customer lines.

MR. MORRISSEY: Mr. Wilcox is
available for cross-examination.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right.
Mr. Gillespie?

MR. GILLESPIE: None, Your Honor.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Gambardella?

MR. GAMBARDELLA: May I have a moment,
Your Honor?

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Yes.

MR. GAMBARDELLA: No gquestions,
Your Honor.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Marmon?

MR. MARMON: Your Honor, we would
object to the introduction of this exhibit
at this time, not because it's not the kind of
information that is needed in this proceeding.
It is -- it is exactly the kind of information
that We.need, that you need to make your
decision in this case, but we are here
presented with crucial facts, crucial to the

determiriation of the issue here an hour before
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the last day of the hearing. Any opportunity
or-- to check this information, to really
know any precise way what the source is,
except in the most general terms described
by Mr. Wilcox, and we just think that it's
improper, this exhibit, to be in this case
representing what it purports to be without
the sort of examination and study and
identification that it deserves.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Well, wasn't
it offered, wasn't it proffered in opposition
or in response to an exhibit with the same
sort of numbers that you had. intended to’
introduce? 1Isn't that how it came into the
record?

MR. MARMON: This exhibit that we
have here now which goes -- which speaks to
access lines is totally different from the
original DSW-2.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: I mean, but
that was your exhibit, right?

MR. MARMON: The DSW-2 was
Mr. Wilcox's. We attémpted -

~ _ COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: I stand
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corrected. I thought it was -- I thought it
was yours.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: You took
DSW=2 and then you added population figures
in?

MR. MARMON: That's right. And
now we have -- and that was by cities. The
original DSW-2 spoke to cities served by
different vendors. We now have an exhibit
that speaks about access lines, and again,

I would concede that the kind of information
contained in this exhibit is highly relevant,
but I just think it's improper to be presented
in this fashion today, at the last moment of
the hearing.

COMMISSIO&ER SHANNON: Well, I think
that since you admit it is relevant and since
that it is information that was sworn information.;

(Discussion among Commissioners out
of the hearing of the reporter.)

That's right, as Judge Harwood said,
we're searching for the truth here, and you
have a perfect right to probe it, if you think

anything iS'wronq, you may certainly probe into
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that. That's your prerogative. But we're

going to admit this -- and we would have

admitted your 2A figures, except for the

347

fact that the Commission of its own knowledge

saw that some of them -- some of the figures

were understated, and I think Mr. Wilcox

said he didn't agree with it. Now, if you

want to take your witness and put that same

information in there, we will certainly

receive it. So we're going to admit this

DSW=-2A.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. MARMON:

Q Mr. Wilcox, how many access lines

are served -- how many access lines in the Washington

LATA are Virginia lines?

A In the Washington LATA? Okay.

Washington LATA, the exchanges of Herndon, Braddock,

Lorton Metro, Alexandria/Arlington, Falls Church/

McLean, Fairfax /Vienna, and Engleside, and Dulles

are in -- well, let's see -- no, that's not correct.

In the

Dulles is not in that LATA. The others I mentioned are.

So it would be the sum total of those exchanges which

we could compute from Pages 2 and 3 of my exhibit.
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Specifically, that would be 235,145 in the Arlingtony/
Alexandria exchange; 87,000 --
MR. MOORE: Give the exchange first.
A All right. 1In Fairfax/Vienna, there
are 87,015. I may have failed to mention Falls Churchy
McLean. That is in the Washington LATA, and it has
151,192. Braddock has 12,655. Engleside has 13,066.
Lorton Metro has 669. And Herndon has 40,636.
Q Just one moment please.
| COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Is Lorton
Metro shown on --
CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: It's on the
.non-, £first page.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Oh, yes.
COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: How about

Lorton; that's not in there?

THE WITNESS: Well, on the map I have,

I'm not sure whether that's -- I think that is
in the Culpeper LATA. That's an independent
company territory I believe associated with
the Culpeper LATA.

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Would that be
true also of Dale City, Triangle and Occoquan?

THE WITNESS: Yes, it would.
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CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: They're in the.
Culpeper LATA?

THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor, they

are.

BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing)
Q Could we go through the Culpeper
LATA, Mr. Wilcox, on the same basis, the identification
of which exchanges are in the Culpeper LATA?
A All right. 1In the Culpeper LATA
would be the exchanges of Leesburg, Catoctin --
MR. MOORE: Can you give us the
numbers at the same time, or is that --
A (Continuing) Leesburg would have
7,485. Catoctin, 2,128.
MR. MOORE: Say that one again.
A (Continuing) 2,128. Mount Gilead,
2,886. Middleburg, 1,705. Arcola has 1,009.
Q Is that on your list?
A Yes, it is. t
" CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Non-C&P.
A Non-C&P, fourth one down, second
page.
MR. MOORE: We only need C&P, the

LATAS.
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A (Continuing) All right. Scratch
Arcola.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Now we're
switching questions, right? The initial
question was the Culpeper LATA, now Culpeper
LATA for only C&P; is that --

MR. MARMON: That's correct.

A (Continuing) All right. Warrenton
has 7,502. Fredericksburg, 21,086. Hartwood, 2,596.
Spotsylvania --

MR. MOORE: Say Hartwood again.

A (Continuing) Hartwood is 2,596.
S?otsylvania, 2,090. Those are the only --

MR. MOORE: C&P?

A (Continuipg) C&P exchanges in the
Culpeper LATA that I can find associated with this list.

MR. MARMON: All right, we're going
to add these up, if we may.

MR. MORRISSEY: Are you adding
both the Washington metropolitan and =---

MR. MARMON: We're adding the lines
of exchanges that you listed, C&P exchanges

in the Culpeper LATA.
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BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing)
Q Will you take, subject to check,
Mr. Wilcox, that the figures that you have given us
add up to 46,7787
A I'll accept that, subject to check.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: What was your
figure?
MR. MARMON: 46,778.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I must be
off; I had 47,478, but I may have ==
MR. MARMON: Okay, let's call it

47 for convenience.

BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing) -

Q Mr. Wilcox, are you familiar with the
plan, the Bell Atlantic Telephone Company Equal Access
Compliance Plan submitted by Bell Atlantic to the --
Judge Greene on June 22nd, 19842

A I believe I've seen it. I have
certainly not studied it.

MR. MARMON: I would like to
introduce at this point a Summary of
Preliminary Plans for the Provision of
Equal Acceés for the Culpeper LATA which

is contained in that Plan and if -- we don't
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have 15 copies of the whole Plan, but we

would -- we can certainly arrange to have

the whole report made part of the record.

But this is the Culpeper, the summary for

the Culpeper LATA.
COMMISSIONEB SHANNON: That's part

of the Plan that was submitted to Judge Greene?
MR. MARMON: That's right, by C&P,

by Bell Atlantic on behalf of C&P.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: C&P of Virginia.
MR. MARMON: Pardon?
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: C&P of Virginia.

MR. MARMON: That's right.

MARMON: (Continuing)

Q Now, Mr. Wilcox, do you see on this

sheet that we should mark, I guess, DSW --

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: We'll
tentatively mark this as DSW-6.

MR. MORRISSEY: Judge Shannon,
I'm wondering why it should be marked as
DSW. 1It's being propounded by MCI. Maybe
we could use Mr. Marmon's initials, but this
is'certainly not being sponsored by Mr. Wilcox.

MR. MARMON: Make it MCI-6.
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, under
our rules, of course, we need a sponsor for
an exhibit. - Tentatively, we will call this

MCI-6.
MR. MORRISSEY: Thank you.

BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing)

Q I would like to call your attention --

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Are you ==

this witness, of course, is not a C&P witness,

Mr. Marmon. ‘
MR. MARMON: That's right. But he

says he got --

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I point that

out, if it was an AT&T exhibit, and he was

willing to accept it, we would let you put it

in through him, but go ahead and use it for
purposes of your cross-examination.

MR. MARMON: All right.

BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing) -

Q I'd like to call your attention,
Mr. Wilcox} to the next-to-the-last column where it
says total lipes for the Culpeper LATA, and the total
represented there is 119,000 lines; is it not?

A That is the number, yes.
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Q Is there any reason to believg that
this would not be an accurate representation of the
number of lines in the Culpeper LATA that C&P has as of
9/1/85?

A I'm not sure if this would be
capacity of their switches or lines and services.

It doesn't say.

Q I would like you to accept, subject to
check, to reference to the entire document that this
is lines, which would be subject to conversion to equal
access or non-conversion to equal access.

A Well, I'm not sure, are you asking me
to accept, subject to check, that they would be working
lines or capacity at the office?

Q These are working lines that C&P
intends to convert to equal aécess, a portion of which
they intend to convert to equal access, and a portion

of which they will not have converted by 9/1/85?

MR. MORRISSEY: Perhaps Mr. Marmon
could point out in the entire document where
it does say that these are working lines

and not capacity lines.
MR. MARMON: I see no indication

of =-- this document is the Compliance, the
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Plan of Compliance of the Bell Atlantic
Operating Companies, and the Plan is being
submitted in the context of what -- how many
lines will, in fact, be equipped with equal
access on varying dates. The firét one is
9/1/85, then 9/1/86 and then 9/1/88. And
if you look at this chart, you see number
of switches, number of lines, and then there
is a percent of the total number of lines
of those equipped for equal access. And
then the next category is the number of
switches and the number of lines and the
percent of the total not equipped for
equal access. I don't see how you could
equip a line for equal access unless it
existed.

MR. MORRISSEY: I would tend to
disagree and renew my objection. C&P has a

lot of equipment for capacity that are not

used directly. There have been no indications

that this is actual lines in use and not
capacity lines. And Mr. Wilcox has further
indicated that he has seen this document,

but he is not the expert on this, and if
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Mr. Marmon believes that these are actual
lines, I would just ask him to point to the
document which shows it is actual lines
and not capacity lines. It makes a big
difference.

The second point is, it does say
as of 9/1/85. Mr. Wilcox's information, as
he indicated, was information given to him
by C&P and the independent telephone companies
as a recent daﬁé. Most probably it was
within the last three or four months. So
tbat the two types of information are not
even the saﬁe in terms of time.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well,
Mr. Marmon, it seems to me you're trying to
put in through this witness something that
was raised in another proceeding which he
wasn't, apparently, a party to, and he wasn't

involved in, submitted by C&P. My suggestion

is that you put this in ‘through your own witness,

who is familiar with the proceeding, and =--
MR. MARMON: Your Honor, my witness
is not familiar with this proceeding. This is

a proceeding that Mr. Wilcox, if anybody, is
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familiar with, it should'be Mr. Wilcox.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, he
doesn't work for C&P.

MR. MARMON: He does not.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Bell Atlantic.
He better not be.

(Laughter)

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I mean, really,
under the terms of divestiture, he really
shouldn't know this information, I wouldn't
think. Judge Greene has said that you've
got to make the cut, and you've got to make
it clean. It just seems to me you're trying
to -- I understand what you're trying to do,
but I think that there is a == you have to do
it in some other means than this witness.
He's not a competent witness to put it in
anyway.

MR. MARMON: Just one second,

Your Honor.

MR. MOORE: Judge, if I may, and 1
apologize before I start; we get.whipsawed
by the lack of fairness in this procedure.

I really feel that very strongly. This man
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came in here today with an exhibit. We saw it
about 11:30, Mr. Morrissey got it over to our
office. He called me up and said I got it,
it's on its way. We got it. We looked at the
numbers and said they don't look right. How
can we check those numbers? What can we do?
We go to the one source of data that we've
got. We can't call C&P as a witness now.
It's, you know, the last day of the hearing,
an hour before the hearing. We can't call
them and examine them on this issue, so the
only thing we've got is this, the report
that C&P made to Judge Greene.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: When did you
first come in possession of that report?

MR. MOORE: We've had the report,

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, if you've
had the report and intended to use it,
Mr. Moore--you've alluded to the unfairness
of this proceeding. This Commission has
certainly bent over backwards to be fair.
Of course, we did have a short time span

between the entry of the Order and the setting
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of this hearing, but that was also for the
benefit of MCI and the others, as well as
ATsT, because you wanted to be certified
before the lst of September, and we were
going to make every effort to do that.

But I would say this: That if you had this
document and you knew what you wanted to
prove, you could have issued subpoenas to
C&P or you could have brought down your own
witnesses. MCI has been as much a party

to this proceeding before Judge Greene as
the C&P Companies, AT&T and the others.

And I submit that the best evidence would be
your own witness, not to try to put it in
through another witness who really is
unfamiliar with it.

MR. MOORE: We didn't know we
needed this. We weren't going to use this.
I mean we're through. We have presented our
case, and we did not use this.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: You haven't
presented an operating witness. You had a
perfect right to present an operating witness,

Mr. Moore. You presented an economic witness,
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which is all well and good, but if you were
going to contest operations, I submit you had
the same 6pportunity that AT&T has had to
present any witness that you thought could
shed light on your position.

MR. MOORE: Your Honor, we d4id not
have that opportunity until today. We got
this information, we're trying to rebut what
is being put on today, and we saw for the
first time at 11:30, and it's no way that I --
that I think it's reasonable to ask us to
have put on a witness. But I will say to
the Commission along this very line, when
we moved for a special report on July 18th,
we asked this Commission to do precisely this.
Our Question A is.the total number of
end offices; our Question B is the total
number of lines; to get that information from
each of these individual operating companies.
We asked for that on July 18th, which was
as soon as we could. We had a hearing on
that to ask for a continuance so these reports
could come in. The continuanceé was denied,

and as far as I know, the motion for the
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orders was not -- has not yet been denied,
but I imagine it's going to be moot if this
hearing is over today. So we, we moved in
this way on this. We did not know we were
going to need this until we got this
information today, and looked at it. And
it took a while to look at it.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Where did
this -- let me get back with this exhibit;
where did that exhibit originate?

MR. MOORE: That exhibit was --
is that the one with our writing on it?

MR. MARMON: That is Mr. Wilcox's
exhibit with our numbers on it, our population
numbers.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: I want to get
this straight, because I'm the one, I'm the
guilty party here. 1I'm the one that asked
for this. It seems to me like yesterday,
MCI wanted to introduce this exhibit through
Mr. Wilcox; is that correct?

MR. MOORE: Yes, that's correct.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Which was

your exhibit by population?
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MR. MOORE: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: And then I
asked -- and then we started trying to add
to this list from memory, and I said let's
bring it back today. And isn't that what
we've done? 1Isn't that what he's gone out
and amplified or more particularized your
original exhibit?

MR. MOORE: No, sir, that exhibit--

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Correct me
where I'm wrong.

MR. MOORE: That exhibit listed
locations, and we had listed population
centers, trying to show the number of
people. He has gone back, he has taken
access lines, which is not referred to in
that, in that exhibit in any way, and he
has created percentages with the access
lines. And we have no way of checking
whether those access lines are right or
not. We are taking what he said was right
and working from that. He's now come back
with a wholé new set of data. And we don't

have -- it's no way we know, I think that

1288




FERMUAN WV BAIVITRIEe N wIVYa ¢

10
1"
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

21

24

Wilcox - Recross 363

ﬁhe 1,793,000 looks low. Mr. Schell, yesterday,
if my memory serves me correctly, said it was
a million 950. And he .said it was 20 percent,
the independents were about 20 percent.

MR. MORRISSEY: Some specific and
general comments, with the Commission's
indulgence: I'm surprised on one hand by
Mr. Moore's reaction, and also I'm not
surprised. I'm not surprised in the sense
that it's always disturbing when the facts
that come out in a hearing disrupts your
case. However, I am surprised inasmuch as
Mr. Moore, on repeated occasions, in fact
every day, extolls thé virtues of cross-
examination and the facts that are adduced
from cross-examination. These facts have
now been adduced. What MCI attempted to do
was put in an attachment, an exhibit, which
broke down serving areas by population,
and attempted to do it through Mr. Wilcox.

Mr. Wilcox pointed out that that information
was wrong, that you should not use population.
An example of that is my son is two years old,

he's part of the population, and I think he's

v
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bright, but I don't think he makes the decision
as to who buys long-distance service in our
family, nor does he need any extra access
lines, even though he's part of the
population. And Mr. Wilcox was responding
to the direction of the Commission and
information that was brought out by the
cross-examination of MCI, and I believe it
should stand as it is in the record.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, Mr. Moore,
if MCI was an unsophisticated party, you might
be able to, to assert some correctness that
-they are entitled to have a little additional
leeway, but MCI is a very sophisticated
party. They've been in these proceedings
before the Federal éommunications Commission,
before Judge Greene -from the inception.
In fact, they've been the ones that have

prevailed at most every stage of the

proceeding. And I think if you're going

to try your case, you have plenty of
competent experts that could come in here
and put in this information. You don't have

to do it through Mr. Wilcox. And I don't think
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it's a denial of due process that you're not
free to, to accept your exhibits through his
testimény, and I think that this information
that was asked was asked for by you and by

the Commission, and it's his sworn testimony
that this is the best evidence. This is it.
Now, if you feel that there is some impropriety,
you have a perfect right to probe into it

on cross-examination.

MR. MOORE: May I ask, Judge: Often
the Commission doesn't stand on strict rules
of evidence as far as hearsay and this type
of thing. I see that coming in with pur.
trying to use this as a cross-examination
exhibit from Judge Greene's Order. At the
same time, we did not object; if it would
be appropriate, we could object to their
numbers here, because he doesn't have this.
What he did was talk to C&P and talk to
somebody from the independents. &and if
that rule is going to be applied to us,
perhaps it should be applied to them also,

so they héve to call a C&P witness to show

the 1,793,000 lines.
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I think he

got this in the course of his business. I

guess in his business, he is required to

maintain contact with, with.the other companies.
MR. MOORE: Your Honor --
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I think this,

I think what we're going to do, as Judge Harwood

has suggested, we're going to go ahead and

put into the record this proffered exhibit

by MCI, whichshows the population, so that

if it does Qo to the Supreme Court, they

won't have a hiatus of what we;re talking

about. So we ought to go ahead and make

that --

MR. MOORE: MCI-6.

COMMISSIO&ER SHANNON: Beg your
pardon?

MR. MOORE: MCI-6 wouid be the
number.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: 6 we've
already identified, this is 6, MCI-6. So
we'll make your exhibit here that had the
population, that will be MCI-7, although

seriately,iit should be before 6.
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THE BAILIFF: Change it to 7?

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: No, we've
already identified it for the record.

And I want you to hawe everything
in the record that you want, Mr. Moore,
that can be properly put in there.

We're not putting this in to show
the truth or voracity of the population
figures, because some of them were probably
stated incorrectly because you state that --
I don't mean that you misrepresented them =--
I mean that you have taken the city proper
as opposed to the metropolitan area.

MR. MARMON: We have represented
that those figures come out of the Report
of the Secretary for the cities proper, and
we made no contentions that it is anything
other than that.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: That's right.
Well, we're putting it in so that it will be
in the record, so that if any reviewing
authority gets this, they'll have it before-

them. -

MR. MARMON: Aall right. I'd like
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to ask Mr. Wilcox if he would assume that the

119,000 lines that is listed on MCI-6, I'd

like him to assume that they are correct.

THE WITNESS: I would not assume

that, but you may if you want to place a

hypothetical.

BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing)

Q All right, well, isn't it true that if
that is the number of lines that C&P supplies in the
Culpeper LATA that your number of some 47,000 lines
is, is substantially less than that?

A Yes.

Q And do you have any explanation other
than the fact that the lines, that you think that these
figures may apply to capacity.as opposed to actual lines,
do you have any other explanation for the discrepancy
in the figures?

A Sure. There are a number of exchanges
in the Culpeper LATA that are served by C&P that do not
have access to an OCC or reseller. Specifically, thosé
are Brokenburg, Mineral, Louisa, Gordonsville, Orange,
Unionville, Sperryville, Criglersville, Madison, Culpeper,
Remington, Marshall, -The Plains, Upperville, Bluemont,

Berryville, Boyce; Stephens City, Winchester, Gainesboro,
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and Gore.

Q Could I ask you, Mr. Wilcox, to add
those up. We don't have those figures. You didn't
supply them with this.

A Neither do I.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: That may well
account for the difference.here. Are you
testifying that if you added all those names
you just listed and the ones that do have
access might well total 119?

THE WITNESS: Well, it might, it
certainly might come close, Your Honor.

Again, I'm not sure what the -- if the 119

is supposed to be working lines. Even if it

were, that would be.as of 9/1/85. The numbers

I'm using I got from C&P, which are their lines

in service as of April 30th, 1984. So you'd

have a discrepancy of time, too, if there's
any growth in there. But the substantial

difference would be because the exchanges I

mentioned do not have access to an OCC or a

reseller of which I am aware..

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Can't the

Commission do this, can't we take judicial
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notice of our own maps and those thét have
access and those that do not? We've got the
same thing he's got, I guess. And add them
up, and you can do the same later. Rather
than sit here and do arithmetic all afternoon.

MR. MARMON: All right, I'd just
like to ask Mr. Wilcox where he got his
figures.

BY MR. MARMON: . (Continuing)

Q Where Qid you get your'figures,
Mr. Wilcox; the figures you supplied us on DSW --
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Are you
talking about his figures on his Exhibit
DSW=-2A?
MR. MARMON: DSW-2, Attachment 2A.
A The independent company numbers came
from this document which is entitled "The Virginia

Exchange Carrier Association, May, 1984, Fifty Years

of Service to Member Companies and the Commonwealth of

Virginia.

Q What about the C&P numbers?
A The C&P numbers came from Dave Keliy

of C&P Company.

Q e You got them verbally over the
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A

371

No, I have them in writing. In both

cases, I'd be happy to provide you with copies.

Q

A

We'd like that.
All right.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: That

independent booklet has wide circulation.

I believe
that.
a

Q

Company .
Q

A

the Commissioners have copies of

Sure.
Who is David Kelly?

He is an employee of C&P Telephone

And when did he give you these figures?

I believe he gave them to Johnny

Landers last Thursday or Friday.

Q
Friday? '

A

Q
DSW—2?-

A

You had them on last Thursday or

I had them last Thursday night, yes.

Yet you submitted your original

Well, we did that on Wednesday.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Let's get that

straight.
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THE WITNESS: Thursday.
COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: You admitted
that through him, or tried to. That's what's
now MCI-6. We keep referring to that, and
I think that's critical in here.

MR. MARMON: Well, there was an
original DSW-2 submitted by Mr. Wilcox.

THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor, I
had a DSW-=2 in my testimony which was based
on information from the first quarter of
1984 out of a central system that we try-
to maintain on competitive presence.

COMMISSIONER.BRADSHAW: Okay.

THE WITNESS: We realized that it
was sorely out of date, and had tried to
get -- started getting additional numbers,
and as we did, we made the corrections that
we made.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, the
DSW-2 that you submitted with your testimony,
which was DSW-4, the 2, according to my
copy here, contained a list of the cities
served by the different vendors.

THE WITNESS: Yes, that's right.
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: And it didn't
have any breakdown as to numbers according
to population or according to lines?

THE WITNESS: That's right. And
the numbers that I introduced, I
introduced in my summary statement, because
I did not have them in time for my prepared
testimony.

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: I believe I asked
you, did I not, that you add to those EAS
lines of which somebody obviously reminded
you that had access to them, or you thought of
it yourself, but added those in.

THE WITNESS: VYes, sir, we did.

CHAIRMAN 3ARWOOD: I am not surprised,
Mr. Marmon, but we can check on the numbers
in Mr. Addison's office, those are the
number of lines in each of those exchanges,
but I'm not surprised to find that's what,
47,000 of the 119,000 in the Culpeper LATA,
not having service by OCCs at this time.

I think you will find that the Richmond,
Washington and Norfolk LATAs are having a

very high percentage, the metropolitan areas,
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and the ones in the Southwest, probably even
less than this.

MR. MARMON: If Your Honors would
like, we could go through this exercise for
Richmond and Norfolk, and compare the figures
that Mr. Wilcox has with the figures that
CsP has submitted to Judge Greene. I don't
want to be overly tedious about this.

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Well, I don't
think we need to do it unless you disagree
with the figures. |

MR. MARMON: We do disagree with the
figures. We think they're low.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Go right ahead,
probe into it if you want. But bear in mind,
you're talking abou£ two different things.'
He's talking about figures as of April,
and this is talking about figures as of
September, 1985, I believe.

MR. MARMON: That's correct. And
they're in that report there. It indicates
there's about a three percent growth from
year to year.in the number of lines.

MR. MORRISSEY: Judge Shannon, I'll
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say just that the =-- that we might expedite
matters -- and it's understandable that

Mr. Marmon might be confused. I sub-

mit’ that I didn't know all the facts
surrounding this. 1It's come to my attention
that another reason for this discrepancy is
C&P's requirements under the MFJ, they were
supposed to report on main station, main
station equivalents, so that we can stay
here for three hours and the numbers are
never going té jive. Mr. Wilcox talked about
access lines. What I'm led to believe is
thesé are main station and main station
equivalents, and those will not equal each
other.

COMMISSIOﬁER SHANNON: That's exactly
the point. That's the trouble with using
something out of a different proceeding from
a different witness to try to make your
point,.and I still say the best evidence
would be if you had gotten somebody from
your company, Mr. Marmon, that was familiar
with this, that knew it and could put it in

on direct testimony; then the other side
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could probe it and see whether he was accurate
or not.

MR. MARMON: Your Honor, our company
doesn't have any access to C&P's figures
or lines served by AT&T or --

COMMISSSIONER SHANNON: But I'm
sure you could have subpoenaed a C&P witness.
We issue subpoenas every day around here.

MR. MORRISSEY: Or, Judge Shannon,
he could have done what we did and called :
Mr. Kelly or anyone at C&P. We're not part
of C&P any more. We called and asked. We
found that to be very effective sometimes
in getting information.

MR. MARMON: ﬁe would -- we think
that one piece of iﬁformation from Mr. Wilcox
would be very helpful, and that is the
percentage of lines not served by an OCC
LATA by LATA. If he could give us that.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Do you have

that information?

THE WITNESS: No, I don't, Your Honor.

I'm sure we could get it, but I don't have it

with me today.
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COMMISSIONER ?HANNON: Well, if he
doesn't have it, he doesn't have it.

MR. MARMON: We have it for Culpeper,
at least we think it's probably less than
50 percent and -- would you agree to that,
Mr. Wilecox?

THE WITNESS:. I would agree to the
number 47,478 lines in exchanges that have
access to OCCs or resellers, and I'm not sure,
because I didn't ask C&P, we didn't ask C&P
for the number of lines, the exchanges that
don't have access to a competitor of AT&T
Communications, ané I just can't testify
as to what that percentage would be in that
LATA.

MR. MARMON: All right, thank you
very much. No further questions.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr., Magee?
Ms. Dubont?

MS. DUPONT: No questions.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Did you have
anything, Mr. Gambardella?

| MR. GAMBARDELLA: Your Honor, I'm

really -confused now about the -- this first
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line on this chart. It says LEC Access Lines;
is that =-- may I ask him a question?

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Go ahead
and ask your question.
RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. GAMBARDELLA:

Q Is that the tdtal access lines owned
by C&P?

A The number for C&P, as I understand it,
includes all business and residence access lines other than
private lines, with the exception of CENTREX is equated
as if it were PBX main lines, so that in every case --
I've forgotten what the normal way to treat CENTREX is,
I'm sorry -- but rather than counting all lines in a
CENTREX installation, you count them as if it were a
PBX and the equivalent number of trunks that you
otherwise would count as main lines for business.

Q I see. This isn't a matter of going
out and counting up lines. You might have to exercise
some judgment and make some assumptions about, and
actually make some calculations in that million 793;
is that right?

A The only calculation is the one that

I mentioned, the transforming CENTREX lines into the
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equivalent business lines. That would pertain to a business

PBX account.

Q Did you do that calculation?
A No, C&P did that calculation.
Q You don't know how they did it or

what assumptions they made?

A I think the assumption is something
like one-eighth of the CENTREX, total CENTREX lines,
would be included as business lines. I think that's
the typical way it's done.

MR. GAMBARDELLA: Thank you.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Any redirect?
MR. MORRISSEY: Just one, Judge

Shannon.

kEDIRECT.EXAMINATION
BY MR. MORRISSEY:

Q Mr. Wilcox, if this Commission had
requested C&P to provide their number of access lines, do
you believe that they would have calculated them in the
same way to provide that information to the Commission
as they would =--

MR. MOORE: I object to that, Your

Honor. He can't testify to that.
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: 1I'll sustain
that objection.

MR. MORRISSEY: I have no further
questions.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: You may stand
down, Mr. Wilcox, and your testimony will be

received as marked.

d % % Kk %k * * *

WITNESS STOOD ASIDE
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DSW-2A

VIRGINIA EXCHANGES SERVED BY OCC'S

AND NUMBER OF ACCESS LINES

C&P

=Arlington/Alexandria
-Fairfax/Vienna
~Falls Church/McLean
-~Braddock
~Engleside
Richmond
Ashland
Bethia
Chester
Manakin
Rockville
Sandston
Varina
Mechanicsville
Midlothian
Roanoke
Bent Mountain
Montvale
Salem
Norfolk/Virginia Beach
Portsmouth
Newport News
Hampton
Peninsula
+Poquoson
Lynchburg
Concord
Petersburg
Hopewell
Dinwiddie
¢ Leesburg
Catoctin
tMiddleburg
cMount Gilead
—~Herndon
¢Fredericksburg
CHartwood
tspotsylvania
Suffolk
Whaleyville
Temperanceville
Chincoteague
Belle Haven
Parksley
Danville
CWarrenton
Toano
Williamsburg

Total

235,145
87,015
151,192
12,655
13,066
234,706
6,914
1,496
9,748
1,906
940
8,748
2,327
10,158
9,009
83,072
575
965
13,407
244,083
58,028
40,317
52,916
32,209
3,799
49,844
1,196
37,726
13,193
2,936
7,485
2,128
1,705
2,886
40,636
21,086
2,596
2,090
11,913
1,107
2,834

3,971
1,934

30,275

7,502
2,659

15,607

1,579,826 iaos

Page 2 of 3
NON-C&P

Charlottesville 41,454
Crozet 2,176
Scottsville 1,678
¢Arcola 1,009
Dulles 782
Princess Anne 3,786
Great Bridge 6,289
Hickory 2,379
Manassas 25,016
Haymarket 3,805
Nokesville 889
Independent Hill 2,413
Dale City 10,885
Triangle 5,096
Occoquan 15,090
Chancellor 5,495
Stafford 5,153
Troutville 3,294
Bachelors Hall 1,776
Whitmell 1,635
Chuckatuck 884
Holland 708
#orton 2,793
-Lorton Metro 669
Bristol 12,487
Total 157,641



DSwW-2A

. Page 3 of 3
VIRGINIA EXCHANGES
SERVED ONLY BY RESELLERS
AND NUMBER OF ACCESS LINES
C&P NON-C&P
Christiansburg 8,165 Abingdbn 7,515
Blacksburg 18,326 Glade Spring 1,207
Radford 10,036 Meadowview 1,651
Shawsville 1,672 Damascus 1,274
Konnarock 415
Total 38,199 Fincastle 966
Eagle Rock 637
Troutville 3,294
Woodstock 3,291
Strasburg 2,518
Toms Brook 952
Edinburg . 1,888
Basye 1,032 -
Mount Jackson 1,530
New Market 1,547
Total 29,717
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right,
I believe we're ready to hear again from

Dr. Cornell.

NINA W. CORNELL, recalled as a witness

by and on behalf of the protestant, MCI, having been
previously duly sworn, testifies further as fellows, viz:

DIRECT EXAMINATION (CONTINUED)

BY MR. MARMON:

Q . .Good morning, Dr. Cornell.
A Actually, I believe it's afternoon.
Q Dr. Cornell, yesterday, Mr. Wilcox

spoke, in answer to questions from Mr. Ga@bardella and
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myself about the AT&T Block-of-Time Plan, and he testified
that the AT&T Block-of-Time tariff offering represented a
service that was -- that would produce revenues in
excess of costs. And there was a difference of opinion
about that. Mr. Gambardella introduced the Justice
Department Petition to challenge that, that tariff,
where the Justice Department claimed that the Block-
of-Time tariff was below cost and anti-competitive,
and Mr. Wilcox said that the Justice Department didn't
understand access charges. I would like to ask you some
questions about the AT&T Block-of-Time Plan.

Could you please tell us what that
is?

A The Block-of-Time Plan, there are a
couple of them, but the simplest one is a plan in which
customers can subscribe in ad§ance and pay $10 a month
and get an hour's worth of night/weekend calling for that
flat rate of $10, and if they go over the hour, they pay
8.75, I believe it is, for each additional hour of calling.

Flat block of time, that's what you get.

Q Now, have you -- did the Common
Carrier Bureau assess this tariff and issue a report

and Order on it?

A | -They allowed it to go into effect, yes.

1314




wr

1

12
13

14

15
18

17
18

19

21

23

24

Cornell - Direct 382
Q Yes. And I'd like to hand you
what would be marked as NWC-- |
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: NWC, the
next number would be 8.
MR. MARMON: 8.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Would you
describe what it is, please.
MR. MARMON: This is the Memorandum
Opinion and Order in the matter of AT&T
Communications, Inc., Division of Tariffs,
FCC No. 263 and FCC 1, released June 6th,
1984, by the Chief of the Common Carrier
Bureau of the Federal'Communications'
_ Commission.
BY MR.—;ggibN: (Continuing)
Q Dr. Cornell, did the Common Carrier
Bureau conclude that the AT&T Block-of-Time tariff
was offered in such a way that it would recover the
costs of providing thaﬁ.tariff? e
A No, in fact, they concluded the
opposite. The numbers which are -- can be found in
two places, on Page 2 in paragraph 3, and in Footnote.

2 at the bottom of that page, show that for a user who
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uses the entire hour for the first hour of $10 is going
to pay the equivalent of 16.67 cents per minute. That's
about the one, two, three, four, five, six, seventh line
down in paragraph 3. But AT&T is going to pay 16.9 cents
per minute in access charges. For the second and
subsequent hours, these are the high volume, profitable
users that AT&T witnesses referred to yesterday, they
will receive 14.6 cents in revenue to cover all their
costs, including access charges, and just for access
charges, they will still have to pay 16.9 cents a minute.
It's called losing 2.3 cents in every minute and making
it up in volume, I guess. I don't know.

Q Now, yesterday, did Mr. Wilcox attemét
to make an argument that indicated that, in fact, AT&T's
costs would actually be less ghan the revenues received,
and if he d4id, could you please comment on that?

A Well, Mr. Wilcox seemed to be saying
that you could look at =-=-- that access charges have two
components to them. There is the costs of -- that are
imposed upon the local exchange company for providing
access, and then there is the carrier common line charge,
which is the element that is designed at the moment to
pick up the non-traffic-sensitive costs that have been

assigned to the interstate jurisdiction under the
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separations formula. He was arguing that the reason
that AT&T does not believe they're providing it below
cost is that they view the carrier common line charge
portion as a fixed cost which economists use that term
to mean costs that don't vary with the gquantity of the
substance thap you use. But it's like, if you build a
factory, the whole factory is a fixed cost, and it
doesn't vary if you turn out two units of production,
or 22 units of production, or 222,000 units

of production. He argued that the FCC has made it
clear that they have a revenue target that they're
looking for for the carrier common line charge, and
that they .aren't going to let it go over that, and
they will do a variety of things. The only problem is,
that isn't the way access charges are set up. Access
charges are set up to be so much per minute, and on
average, it's going to be, according to the FCC's
calculations, 16.9 cents per minute. And that's going
to remain true no matter how many minutes AT&T uses.
The FCC has said that they'll go back to access charges
in six months if they need to and if there's some big
glitch in the numbers, in the charges that they've set
versus where they want to be. But the FCC has neither

put a cap on the total amount to be collected from AT&T,
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nor have they set up .any -retroactive refund possibility
if AT&T overprovides to the carrier common line charge
collections. They've made no provision, moreover, I
might say if there is a great underrecovery of that
revenue requirement, they've made no provision for going
back and asking the carriers to ante up more money.
So it is not a fixed cost. It is a variable cost.
COMMISSIONER .SHANNON: Dr. Cornell,
you referred earlier to 16.92
THE WITNESS: It's in Footnote 2,
Your Honor. 1It's the third line from the
bottom of Footnote 2 on Page 2. The reason
that I used that is that the petitioners
who asked fhat'-e this document was in
response to petitioners who asked that the
Block-of-Time tariff be rejected or suspended
and investigated. And the petitioners said
it would cost AT&T 18.5 cents per minute.
The Common Carrier Bureau, the Chief of the
Common Carrier Bureau, has noted that they‘
have recalculated based on changes in the
access charge tariff, but they believe it
will cost AT&T 16.9 cents per minute, and I

was comparing 16.67 that's in the text of
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2 Paragraph 3, to l4.6 that's in the text, to
3 the cost of 16.9.
4 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: I see. Okay.
5 . Thank you.
8 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Were you a
7 party to this?
8 THE WITNESS: No, I was not.
9 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: I'm having
10 a hard time seeing the relevance, frankly.
1 MR. MARMON: The relevance =--
12 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: I know this
. 13 is a brilliant lady, but what is the relevance
~ 14 here of Tuesday afternoon quarterback of
18 another proceeding?
16 MR. MARMON: The relevance, Your
i 17 Honor, is you have to decide whether AT&T
. 18 is going to be offering services on a
1§ competitive basis. In June of this year,

the substantial evidence was that AT&T offered

PENGAD CTO., BAYONNK, N.J. 0O700X

21 its services on a non-competitive basis,
22 which has been challenged by the Justice
23 Department, and we think that it's relevant
24 to bring that before you.
25 COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: I see, okay.
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BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing)

Q Is this, Dr. Cornell, is this tariff.
in effect at this time?

A Yes, this tariff is in effect at this
time.

Q Now, subsequent to the proffering
of this tariff and its going into effect, did AT&T attempt
to amend this tariff to lower it by some figure?

A Yes, AT&T filed a tariff change
proposal, proposing to reduce this by 6.1 percent, the .
same across-the-board percentage that the FCC ordered them
to reduce their MTS rates.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Dr. Cornell,
do you think in a competitive society, people
can't offer things below cost? I mean, the
grocery stores have loss leaders over the
weekend, and Greyhound, you can ride the bus
anywhere you want, any time you want to,
for $75.

THE WITNESS: Well, first of all,
Your Honor, I don't -- the evidence that they
really are loss leaders is not too good, that
they are really offering those things below

the variéble cost of offering them. That's one.
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Number two, the purpose of this is
to bring in customers. If you are offering
something that's way below cost, the reason
is that you're going to bring people into
your store, they're going to purchase a wide
variety of other goods and services, and the
value that those purchases bring in make it
have to have been profitable. It's like an
expenditure in advertising, in other words.
This doesn't have those same. characteristics.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Let's assume

.that it is below cost, okay?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: What's wrong
with the concept, from an economic point of view,
that people can maké business judgments to obtain
business any way they want to?

THE WITNESS: Okay, but the problem
is, first of all, this isn't to obtain business.
This is offering to a group of high-volume
customers a service below cost. AT&T, in
fact, justified this by noting that its
entire MTS category was still going to earn

its proposed rate of return. That means
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they're making it up on some other group of
customers, Your Honor. Those are the people
who aren't high-volume users who are going
to pay for the high-volume users to be
provided below-cost service.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: Well, aren't
all loss leaders in the free enterprise system
made .up somewhere?

THE WITNESS: No, usually -- well,
they're made up someplace, but they're made up
like an adver;ising expenditure is, which is
that I make an advertising expenditure if
I'm a business person, and it lures, let's
say, you into my store or into my place of
business, and then you both pick up what is
below, what is advertised below whatever
price you want to think is the cost-based
price, and you pick up a variety of other
goods. And in the combination, in the bundle
of what you buy, you have made a profit for

the store.
COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: You're
saying the difference is the way it's

advertiséd?- Is that what you're telling me?
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THE WITNESS: It isn't a question
of advertising. It is a fact that if you sign
up for this, and you use a block of time, an
hour of night/weekend calling, there's nothing
there that is going to induce you to also,
let's say, use an hour of daytiﬁe calling
or an hour of regular MTS, in addition.

You are going to substitute this for normal
MTS use, and therefore, the people who use
this are not going to be purchasing additional
goods and services from AT&T, in other words,
MTS calling, to bring in the revenues to
cover the losses incurred on this service.
It's the other folk who don't -- I would
note moreover that this is not offered
every place in the ﬁnited States. This is
offered out of 19 BOC's at the moment,

not even independent companies.

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: And that's
my next question: It's not offered igv
Virginia, is it?

THE WITNESS: I do not know which
local exchange companies =--

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: I don't think
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it is.

THE WITNESS: But there is nothing
to bar --

COMMISSIONER BRADSHAW: If it's not,.
how is it relevant, if it's not offered in
Virginia?

THE WITNESS: Because if you
deregulate AT&T as is being proposed for
yéu to do, there is nothing to bar AT&T from
introducing in Virginia an exactly ;imilar
plan.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well,

Dr. Cornell, in every competitive business,
you have loss leaders; don't you? I mean,
the grocery store, Safeway out here may sell
a can of beans at tén cents to get me tO come
in and buy a can of 75-cent peaches.

THE WITNESS: Well, I once again
say, I think you better be careful about what
you mean by loss leader, because thére's very

little --

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, selling

a product below cost --

THE WITNESS: 1It's very little
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evidence that people really price below -
their basic variable costs of offering that.
In other words, if I bought a can of beans
from the wholesaler at eight cents and
offered it to you for ten, it's true, I may
not be covering as much of my overhead costs
on that can of beans, but if beans are really
popular, and if by advertising beans, I get
most of the housewives in that area to do
their weekly grocery shopping that week in
my grocery store, those same housewives

who buy the beans are going to cover my
overhead.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, wouldn't
it be true to the extent that MCI is offering,
or Sprint, or any of the other OCCs are
offering services, interstate service in
Virginia, how do we know they're not offering
some of their services at below or at cost?
We don't; do we? It's a competitive market.

THE WITNESS: Well, first of all,
you know ;ﬁ adds to MCI and GTE-Sprint,
because théy have no other group of customers

who can cover and make up for. If they do
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something like this, where they offer a
service that is below even their access
charge, you know, AT&T has to fork that money
over to the local exchange company, and it's
not going to get back as much revenue from the
customer, and we haven't even talked about
AT&T's own costs, using their own transmission.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, using --
MCI, they have to pay access charges,
too.

THE WITNESS: That's correct.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: If they offer
their services below a;cess.charge, then
they're making it up somewhere else in a
more profitable area.

THE WITNESS: They have no other
place to make it up, one, and if they do
lose it, it's their stockholders who take it,
you know, the management gets turned down.
what I'm saying is, in this case, it seems
pretty~cléar, if MTS as a w@o;e service is,
in fact, earning its rate oflreturp, it means

there is a bunch of users who are not being

offered and not subscribing to the Block=-of-Time
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Plan who are paying much more.than cost for
their MTS service in order to cover the
losses from this particular offering.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, in the
regulated community, don't life line rates
generally fall below costs?

THE WITNESS: Yes, but that, you
have made a decision that that's in the
public interest and that people should do that.
I don't know where it was decided in the
public interest that people who want to do
a high volume of night/weekend calling should
get that calling for below cost.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, I guess
we're here determining whether it's in the
public interest to put everybody on the same
basis competitive-wise.

THE WITNESS: I have a point to make
to that. Youvcan't put everybody on the
same basis competitive-wise if there's
circumstances by deregulating AT&T on the
grounds that the other guys are going to be
deregulafed when their circumstances are so

vastly different.

¢ 1327




10
11

12
13
14
16
16
7
18

18

21

24

25

Cornell - Direct 395

Fairness - I heard you use the
term the other day. Fairness comes in
treating people who are in like circumstances
alike. These companies are not in like
circumstances. They are in very different
circumstances. AT&T has captive customers,
it serves monopoly customers who have no
place else to go. MCI and GTE-Sprint and
the OCCs and the resellers do not.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: But you have
to admit, don't you, Dr. Cornell, that these

other companies, and MCI, and Sprint, and

so forth, have done pretty well, haven't

they, in getting into the market?

THE WITNESS: Well, it depends
how you want to define pretty well. I'm
not going to argue that they're not
profitable; it would be silly to try.
But if you look at national statistics for
interstate traffic, which is where they've
been the longest, and where the data is the
mﬁst open to collect, they have less than
tén beréent of the total minutes of use

after having been in this market unambiguously -

1328




. =ap* w0

PENGAD CO,, BAYONNE, N.J, 07002

10
11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

21

24

25

Cornell - Direct 396

since 1978, when they got the stuff sorted out.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: AT&T has
been in the market a hundred years, and
they've been in ten years and got ten
percent. It looks like that's pretty good,
pretty good inroads.
THE WITNESS: I would disagree.
I would very respectfully disagree that that
is not a very high inroad and not an indication
that these companies are fuliy competitive
in any way, shape, or form with AT&T.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Let me ask you
one other question on this, this matter before '
the Federal Communications Commission, this
Transmittal No. 79, Memorandum Opinion and
Order. This was really in connection with
a rate proposal they filed for these two
options under the -- under the, I guess it's
the -- what do you call it -- the Time
Optional,. Block-of-Time Optional Calling.
And here you had a Staff Report arguing that
this one service offering was below cost.
Andvthey made some comments in here, the

Staff did, that sych below-cost pricing will
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be predatory, contrary to the Communications
Act, and would inhibit =-- and inhibit
development of competition of ‘long-distance
message service, but we're talking about
a regulated environment here. They're
applying the, the provisions of the
Communications Act of '34 in making these
determinations. You're not comparing like
with like. If this'were a competitive
situation, I ﬁhink it would be an entirely
different situation; don't you?

THE WITNESS: No. When you have
a firm tﬁat has market éower, it is =--

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Of course,
that's theassumptiop, that they have market
power.

THE WITNESS: Well, but, Your Honor,
I would respectfully submit that the fact
that they can lose 2.3 percent on their
high-volume customers and still make their
authorized rate of return says to you
they've got power someplace to go back
and get it out of the low volume. Remember,

you must be way overcharging the low-volume
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customers, because, by définition, they're
low volume. They've got to pay an awful

lot for those low=-volume calls to make up
;osses on your high-volume users; now,
admittedly, it's night/weekend, -and not
your big business daytime MTS users, but
nonetheless, you're still talking a lot of
market power to be able to get away with
losing 2.3 cents on every call and making it
up someplace else in volume.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Yeah, but

-doesn't the OCCs have the power to go out

here and to enter the market at any plaée
they think that it's economically feasible
to do so?

THE WITNESS: They have the power,
that is correct, they do.

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: Dr. Cornell,
let me jﬁst ask you a couple of things as a
matter of clarification from the Opinion. It was
my understanding from a brief sketch reading
that the Bﬁreau of Common Carrier recommended
approval in the public interest?

THE WITNESS: They approved the
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tariff, or they allowed it to go into effect,
I think is the proper way to put it. It has --
the petition that was referred to from the
Department of Justice yesterday, has asked
the full Commission to hear it, and I
understand that in combination with the
request by AT&T to reduce the rates by 6.1
percent, there is going to be an investigation
of this tariff.

CHAIRMAN HARWCOD: My trite under-
standing as a lawyer of this Opinion, if I
were citing it, I would have to cite it
for the position that they approved it,
and found it in the pub;ic interest; would
I not?

THE WITNEéS: Well, from my years
at the FCC, let me suggest that the problem
with thg way the Communications Act is
worded is that it is =-- it is true they could
have suspended the tariff, and they chose not
to do that, but they let things go into
effept,'even though that doesn't mean they
approve them, that they haven't made an

affirmative finding, the Commission hasn't,
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because this is under delegated authority.
And what has been appealed has been to say
to the Commission, you need to look at what
your Staff has done.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: But it's
not unlawful, per se, otherwise they would
have had to suspend it.

THE WITNESS: I mean I -- you're

\

sort of miring me into lawyer's terms, and
I apologize, Your Honor, I'm not a lawyer.
My understanding is that they are now looking
into this. Whether it's unlawful, per se,
is something the Commission will decide.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, my
understanding is, when you file a rate with
the ICC -- it used to be with the ICC --
or with the FCC, if the rate is unlawful,
that is, noncompensatory rate, I believe,
was an unlawful rate -- then they would have
to suspend it. So there is some question
as to whether this was compensatory or not,
because they let it go into effect, I suppose,
subject to fﬁrtherAinvestigation.

THE WITNESS: There is no question --
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I respectfully request that you read the
entire gocument, because there's no gquestion
that the Common Carrier Bureau did not find
it compensatory. What they said -- what they
said was, for a variety of reasons, including
the fact that they're concerned that the
entire night and weekend rate structure

also maf not be compensatory, that they
decided they couldn't say no at the Staff
level .to this particular rate plan. They
also felt they have a variety of reasons

in there that are precisely the reasons

that if you read the Justice Department's
Application for Review, the Justice Department
makes a point those aren't very good reasons

for letting this tariff go into effect.

"And the issue is now in front of the

Commission proper, as opposéd to any longer
being handled.by de1egated authority.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: But actually
what we're talking about, we're talking abouf
an Order of the Common Carrier Bureau, which
let a rate‘go into effect and then the

Justice Department and the other parties here
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had certain positions on it, which apparently
were commented upon, but were not actepted

as such. Otherwise, they would not have let
the tariff go into effect.

THE WITNESS: Well, sir, I don't
know -- I don't remember -- I don't believe,
in fact, that these -- in the first paragraph
on Page 1, I do not see the Department of
Justice. It may be that I just don't read
it there.. But I don't see that the '
Department of Justice commented the first time
around. The Department of Justice responded
to thé action, to this Memorandum Opinion
and Order, letting the tariff go into effect.
And that is when they petitioned for review,
saying wait a minuté, this is noncompensatory.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: But that's
my point. We're talking about a Staff
Opinion -- correct me if I'm wrong,

Mr. Marmon -- it's still on appeal at the
Federal Communications Commission. The
Federal Communicatioﬁs Commission hasn't had
the final word on this yet.

MR MARMON: That's correct. And I
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would like to, since we're talking about it,
I'd like to introduce into evidence the
Justice Department Application for Review
of that Order as NWC-9.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, I
reallf don't see the relevance, but since
we're talking about it, we're going to let
it in, just ﬁecause of the fact that it was
referred to by Dr. Cornell and maybe I asked
a:queséion about it. But it's of limited
value, except just for historical purposes,
to make sure the record is complete. '

We'll mark this for identification

as NWC-9.°

MR. GAMBARDELLA: Your Honor --=
CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: So we don't
get hung up in this: The three members of
the Commission =-- I ﬁhink I can speak for
them -- and if they don't, they'll both punch
at me, I know -- accept the fact in a
regulated environment, or nonregulated,
if you charge below cost for something,
you've got to make it up somewhere, or else

it would eventually go out of business.
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That's the point, I think, that's been trying
to be made here. Whether we agree or disagree
with doing it, I think that's all that is
attempted to be proved in the case; isn't
it? And I think we all accept that.

MR. MARMON: Your Honor, I think
that I'm trying to prove more than that.

I'm trying to prove that AT&T is still
capable of acting in an anti-competitive
way, that this is an indication of that
capacity.

CHAIRMAN HARWOOD: We can't =-- I
disagree with you on that. I can't accept
the fact that, the truth or the falsity of the
allegations in the petition, because I notice
in my sketchy reading that the AT&T claims
that their costs are 10.3 cents for instance,
and doesn't agree with the Common Carrier
Bureau or the petition. So, the matter is
still in litigation, I would think, and the
contention of the parties, I can't accept
the Chief of the Common Carrier Bureau's
findings,-which ultimately said it was

L4 .

in the public interest or wasn't, and let it

1337




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

21

23

24

Cornell - Direct 405

go into effect as being determinative of
whether it was or wasn't. I'd be interested
in what the Federal Communications Commission
does.
MR. MARMON: Your Honor, I think
at the very least, it raises a question,
and I think that that's the sort of question
that is relevant in this proceeding.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: But there's
one thing you're overlooking. Interstate

costs are vastly different from intrastate

costs. Just because something may be

true at the interstate level and approved
by the FCC doesn't necessarily mean that
that's going to be applicable in the
Commonwealth of Viréinia.

MR. MARMON: I would agree.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Mr. Gambardella?

MR. GAMBARDELLA: Your Honor, we
originally raised this point yesterday, and
I'd submit to you that this does have value
for a fairly preécise point, and that is that
the?e ié'a dispute now by someone that is

pretty ekpert in finding out about anti-
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competitive things, and that is the Justice
Department. The dispute between the
Juséice Department and AT&T, no matter how
that dispute comes out--I, too, will be
interested to see how it comes out--there
is a dispute, and this proves the dispute.
The truth or the falsity of each other's
alleéations is something else again. But
the whole colloquy here on this, I think,
illustrates a point that we're concerped
about in this case, aﬁd that is that we
want to examine these things, and we really
haven't had a significant amount of time,
or we feel, an adequate opportunity to do
that.

'Thank you.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, the
Justice Department and Judge Greene didn't
give us a loﬁ of time on this divestiture,
either, did he, Mr. Gambardella?

MR. GAMBARDELLA: No, sir.

MR. MORRISSEY: 1I've not objected
to the.rélevancy of this material at this

point, in the hopes that it would expand the
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BY MR.

found to be unlawful been allowed to go into effect by the

MARMON: (Continuing)

record, and of course, the Commission can
always take public knowledge of these points,
but I would point out the fact, it, that rather
than undercutting our case, in fact strengthens
our case. What it shows is this supposed
anti-competitive activity went into effect

at the Federal level, which is pervasively
regulated. It's indicated that whether

we're regulated or deregulated had no

impact on this alleged anti-competitive
activity, and I would submit to you that

that would be the same in Virginia. It

is not gerﬁane to the facté of this case

and would have no impact as to whether we

are regulated or not regulated.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: All right,
let's get on. This is interesting. I think
you all have a =--

MR. MARMON: .In response to that
particular point, I would lLike to ask

Dr. Cornell one follow-up question:

Q Have other rates that have subsequently bed¢n
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FCC, or Bureau thereof?
A I'm sorry, could you repeat that?

Q In the past, have rates that have

- subsequently been found to have been unjust or improper

been allowed to initially go into effect?

A Yes.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: But isn't that
where they are filed and they are -- there's a
subsequent investigation?

THE WITNESS: They are filed, there's
a subsequent investigation, the Commission
finds the tariff unlawful and -- WATS is a
good case in point. It went on for years
and years and years. The difference between
a regulated and an unregulated market,
however, Your Honor, is that in a regulated
market, when somebody is the victim of that
kind of behavior, they have a forum they can
go to and have it investigated. If you
deregulate AT&T, you have removed that
forum.

COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Well, of
course,‘under the Virginia law, you know,

we have the sword of Damocles hanging over
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1 Cornell - Direct 409
2 .us. If it ceases to be in the public interest,
3 we can always bring them back under regulation.
4 I know somebody said -- I think that you said
5 reregulation is a difficult matter, but I

6 don't think it would be that difficult.

7 THE WITNES?: But, you see, the

8 problem, Your Honor, is you won't know, ‘nor

8 will the people who are victims know.

10 COMMISSIONER SHANNON: You don't

11 think we'll hear from the public?

12 THE WITNESS: You won't have the

13 information that anybody can compare it to.

14 Nobody will be éble.to look. It won't be

15 on file.

16 CHAIRMAN ﬁARWOOD: I might say,

17 Mr. Marmon, this Commission has allowed rates
18 to go into effect, that later have been

19 reversed by the Supreme Court of Virginia.

20 We know about that. Only the courts of

21 last resbrt are infallible.
22 (Laughter)

23 BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing)

24 Q | Dr. Cornell --

25
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COMMISSIONER SHANNON: This might be

a good time to take a short recess.

(Recess)

THE BAILIFF: The Commission resumes
its session.
COMMISSIONER SHANNON: Please continue,

Mr. Marmon.

MR. MARMON: All right.
BY MR. MARMON: (Continuing)
. Q Dr. Cornell, last Friday, were you
in the courtroom when Dr. Alessio was testifyiﬁg?

A Yes, I was.

Q He claimgd that this Commission should
deregulate AT&T because the interLATA market in Virginia
fits the definition of a contestable market; do you
agree with that?

A No, I do not. Dr. Alessio, I don't
believe correctly described contestability. In response
to cross-examination, he denied that hit-and-run
entry was a viﬁal coﬁdition which directly contradicts
the senior author of the theory. I should note that

contestability is a new theo